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Bid Bulletin No.1 dated 28 July 2025 

 
GARBAGE HAULING AT FCA-5 PROPERTY 

ANNEX “A” 
 
 
PROJECT: GARBAGE HAULING AT FCA-5 PROPERTY 
 
 
A. QUERIES/CLARIFICATIONS RAISED DURING THE PRE-BID CONFERENCE: 

 

 Queries/Clarifications TWG/BAC Reply 

1 Who will be the one to certify the driver’s 
license veracity, the Land Transportation 
Office (LTO) or our company itself?  
 

The certification shall be issued by the 
company/bidder. 

2 Will the garbage to be collected is already 
segregated?  
 

Yes. 

3 Will you provide editable forms required 
for the submission of bids? We notice in 
Section 8 that the forms presented have 
initials in the lower portion.  
 
Is it alright to submit a handwritten form?  
 

We will provide the editable forms required 
for the submission of bids. 
 
 
 
Yes. 

4 What will be the expected volume of 
garbage per day?  

The volume of garbage varies each day, but 
as stated in the Bidding Documents, it can 
reach up to 18cubic meter. On some days, it 
may be more or less than 18 cubic meters. 
 

5 Is the dump trucks really not allowed 
since only compactor is stated in the 
Technical Specification?  
 

It is not allowed. The vehicle unit to be used 
must be garbage truck with compactor only. 
 

6 What will be the basis for the SLCC?  Kindly refer to ITB Clause 5.3: 
Contracts similar to the Project shall be: 

a. Contract for garbage hauling and 
disposal. 

b. Completed within five (5) years prior 
to the deadline for the submission 
and receipt of bids. 

c. At least 50% of the total ABC of 
₱24,090,000.00. 
 

7 If the company is not involved in a Joint 
Venture Agreement (JVA), how does it 
transpire in the document?  
 

The prospective bidder only needs to 
indicate “not applicable” in the JVA part of 
the form.  
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B. WRITTEN QUERIES: 
 

 Queries/Clarifications TWG/BAC Reply 

1 If the truck is with Deed of Sale, what 
documents do we need to submit? 

This amends Item 3.3 of the Technical 
Specifications. 
 
For trucks where the OR/CR is still in the 
name of the previous owner, the documents 
to be submitted are the following: 
 

1. Deed of Sale transferring the title of 
the truck to the bidder 

2. Official Receipt/Certificate of 
Registration issued by the Land 
Transportation Office (LTO) in the 
name of the previous owner. 

 
For brand new trucks with no OR/CR, the 
document to be submitted is the Deed of 
Sale transferring the title of the truck to the 
bidder. 
 

2 The Single Largest Completed Contract 
(SLCC) must be a single contract under 
Garbage Hauling done for the past five 
years and must be equivalent to 50% of 
the ABC or P12,045,000.00 or an 
accumulated contracts with one client for 
the past five years, e.g. yearly renewal of 
contract? 
 

For the SLCC, we only accept a single 
contract. Accumulated contracts are not 
acceptable. 

3 The garbage trucks to be used must be a 
compactor with capacity of 18cu.m.? 
 
 
 
 
 
Is it okay to use dump truck with the same 
capacity? 
 

Yes. This amends Item 3 of the Technical 
Specifications. 
 
The Service Provider shall have a minimum 
of two (2) garbage trucks with compactor 
and minimum capacity of 18 cu.m. 
 
Please refer to Item A.5. 

4 Trucks must be OWNED by the bidder or 
you will consider rental of equipment? 
 

Garbage trucks must be owned by the 
bidder. Rental of equipment is not allowed. 

5 The certified true copy of the Driver’s 
License and Certificate of Training will 
only be stamped by the bidder or by LTO or 
the government agency who issued it? 
 

Please refer to our reply to Item A.1. 

6 FORM – 01 which is the Bid Form, there is 
a clause that states “insert if foreign 
assisted project”, if it is not, can we not 
include that paragraph? 
 

No. Please retain the statement and indicate 
“Not Applicable.” 

7 As per instructions during Pre-bid earlier, 
if we opted to retype forms, do we have to 
retype verbatim e.g. copying FORM-03 or 
FORM 09 as is where is? 

We will provide the editable forms together 
with the Bid Bulletin. 
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8 For the Secretary’s Certificate, we have to 

use your template? We cannot use our 
own template? 

We will accept the submission of a 
Secretary’s Certificate not using the SSS 
template, as long as the required 
information, such as the authorized 
signatory and representatives, are indicated 
in the document to be submitted. 
 
Additionally, we strongly advise the bidders 
to pattern their Secretary’s Certificate with 
the template provided in the Bidding 
Documents. 

 
 


